

Vridhi Finserv Home Finance Limited (VFHFL) (Formerly Vridhi Finserv Limited)

Policy on Nomination and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company

Version V2.0

Approving Authority	Board of Directors		
Reviewing Authority	Compliance Department		
Original Issue Date	21 st October 2023		
Last Review Date	29 th March 2024		
Policy Making Body	Compliance Department		
Effective Date	29 th March 2024		



Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION	3		
DEFINITIONS	3		
APPLICABILITY	4		
KEY AREAS OF THE POLICY	4		
CONSTITUTION OF THE NOMINATIONS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)	5		
GENERAL	5		
PART – A	5		
MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH, PERUSED AND RECOMMENDED BY THE NRC	5		
PART - B i. CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES AND INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR	6 7		
• DIRECTOR	7		
INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTOR	7		
 KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL ('KMP') AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT ('SMP') 	8		
II. TERM/TENURE	8		
MANAGING DIRECTOR/WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR	8		
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR	8		
KMP/SMP	8		
III. EVALUATION	9		
IV. REMOVAL	9		
V. RETIREMENT	9		
PART – C	9		
I. PRINCIPLES OF REMUNERATION	9		
II. REMUNERATION OF MD/WTD, KMP AND SMP	10		
COMPONENTS OF REMUNERATION 10			
• FIXED PAY:	11		
VARIABLE PAY:	11 <u>2</u>		
DEFERRAL OF VARIABLE PAY	11 <u>2</u>		
GUARANTEED BONUS	13		
MALUS/CLAWBACK ARRANGEMENT:	13		
MINIMUM REMUNERATION	13		
III. REMUNERATION OF NON- EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS	13		
SITTING FEES	13		
• COMMISSION	14		
IV. REMUNERATION OF OTHER EMPLOYEES	14		
CHANGE OF CONTROL RECORD	14		



INTRODUCTION

Vridhi Finserv Home Finance Limited (the "Company") is of the firm view that in today's globalized world, where on the one hand exists cutthroat competition and on the other side, there is a dearth of availability of candidates with a zeal and passion to perform and outshine. The Company also holds a view that fruits of hard work can be reaped only when the plans are in reality executed from beginning to end in the right direction with the right course of action. It is this execution and action that enables us to turn day-dream plan into a concrete reality.

With an ambition to become one of the preferred financiers and to outperform its competitors with an ambition to remain in front in delivering best financial solutions, the Company proposes this Policy to pay even-handed remuneration to its Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) & Senior Managerial Personnel (SMP) to align the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company.

From regulatory perspective this policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company ('Policy') is in line with the Companies Act, 2013 and Guidelines on Compensation of Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management in NBFCs issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide circular no. RBI/2022-23/36 DOR.GOV.REC.No.29/18.10.002/2022-23 dt. April 29, 2022 ("RBI Guidelines"), as amended from time to time.

DEFINITIONS

- a. Clawback means a contractual agreement between the employee and the Company in which the employee agrees to return previously paid or vested remuneration to the Company under certain circumstances.
- **b.** Committee/NRC shall mean the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
- **c. Employees Stock Option** means the option given to the directors, officers or employees of the Company or of its holding company or subsidiary company or companies, if any, which gives such Directors, Officers or Employees, the benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the Company at a future date at a predetermined price.
- **d. Independent Directors** means Directors who have been appointed by the Company in terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act').
- **e. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)** in relation to the Company means as defined under section 2(51) of Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time and includes the following:
 - i. Managing Director or Executive Director
 - ii. Chief Executive Officer,
 - iii. Company Secretary,
 - iv. Whole-time Director,



- v. Chief Financial Officer and
- vi. Such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole-time employment, designated as key managerial personnel by the Board.
- **f. Malus** means an arrangement that permits the Company to prevent vesting of all or part of the amount of a deferred remuneration. Malus arrangement does not reverse vesting after it has already occurred.
- **g.** Other Employees means employees of the Company as may be identified by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for the purpose of this Policy.
- **h. Retention period** means a period, after the vesting of stock linked instruments, which have been awarded as variable pay during which they cannot be sold or accessed.
- i. Senior Management Personnel (SMP) means officers/personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team excluding board of directors and normally this shall comprise all members of management one level below the chief executive officer/ managing director/ whole time director/ manager (including chief executive officer/manager, in case they are not part of the board) including the functional heads.

Any other term not defined herein shall have the same meaning as defined in the Companies Act, 2013, or any other applicable law.

APPLICABILITY

In view of the definitions given above, the Policy is applicable on all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and Other Employees of the Company. NRC may on an annual basis review the list of KMPs and SMPs identified based on their role and responsibilities.

KEY AREAS OF THE POLICY

- Framework for payment of remuneration to the directors (executive and non-executive), Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel and Other Employees;
- Laying down criteria and terms and conditions with regard to identifying persons who are qualified
 to become directors (Executive and Non-executive) and persons who may be appointed in Senior
 Management and Key Managerial cadres and to determine their remuneration.
- To determine remuneration based on the Company's size and financial position and trends and practices on remuneration prevailing in peer companies & industry, and other relevant factors including but not limited to qualification, experience, etc. of the director/employee that the Committee may deem fit.
- To ascertain the fit and proper criteria in respect of the directors at the time of appointment and on a continuing basis as per the policy of the Company in the same regard.
- To carry out an evaluation of the performance of the Board, its committees, and individual directors
 to be carried out either by the Board, by the Committee or by an independent external agency and
 review its implementation and compliance.



- To grant a reward linked directly to their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company's operations and the results expected therefrom.
- To ensure that the remuneration of whole-time directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel involves a balance between fixed and variable pay reflecting short and longterm performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company & its goals and aligned with the applicable regulatory requirements;
- Ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create competitive advantage.

CONSTITUTION OF THE NOMINATIONS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration committee of the Company shall be composed of at least three non-executive directors out of which at least half the directors shall be independent directors, as may be reconstituted by the Board from time to time. The chairperson of the Company (whether executive or non-executive) may be appointed as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair such Committee.

GENERAL

The Policy is divided into three parts:

Part – A covers the matters to be dealt with and recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to the Board

Part – B covers the appointment and nomination and

Part – C covers remuneration and perquisites etc.

This policy shall be disclosed on the website of the Company and key features along with changes, if any, in the Policy along with the weblink of the Policy shall be included in the Board's Report of the Company.

PART – A

MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH, PERUSED AND RECOMMENDED BY THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE TO THE BOARD

The Committee shall:

- Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director;
- For every appointment of an Independent Director, evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge, qualifications, and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an Independent Director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an Independent Director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the



- Committee may:
 - Use the services of any external agencies, if required;
 - Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
 - Consider the time commitments of the candidates.
- Identify persons who are qualified to become director and persons who may be appointed in Key Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this Policy;
- Formulate the criteria for evaluation for performance of Independent directors and the board of directors;
- Devising on diversity of board of directors including a variety of perspectives, skills, ages, genders, cultures, and ethnicities, to achieve success, ;
- Ensure 'fit and proper' status of proposed or existing directors as per the Non-Banking Financial Company Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021. ("RBI Master Directions") and ensure that there is no conflict of interest in appointment of directors, KMPs and SMPs;
- Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors;
- Recommend to the Board, appointment, reappointment and removal of director, KMP and SMP;
- Oversee the framing, review and implementation of this Policy;
- Work in coordination with Risk Management Committee (RMC) to achieve alignment of between remuneration and risks of KMPs and SMPs;
- Ensure that the remuneration levels are supported by the need to retain earnings of the Company and the need to maintain adequate capital based on Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP);
- Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Directors, KMPs and SMPs.

PART – B

POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT INCLUDING RE-APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMPs AND SMPs

i. <u>CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES AND INDEPENDENCE</u> <u>OF A DIRECTOR FOR APPOINTMENT / REAPPOINTMENT</u>:

□ DIRECTORS

As per the RBI Master Directions, the Compensation Policy of the Company to ensure 'fit and proper' status of the proposed/existing Directors. The policy on the fit and proper criteria shall be on the lines of the guidelines contained in RBI Master Directions. In order to streamline and bring in uniformity in the process of due diligence, while appointing Directors, the Company shall ensure that the procedures mentioned below are followed and minimum criteria fulfilled by the persons before they are appointed on the Boards:



- a) The Company should undertake a process of due diligence to determine the suitability of the person for appointment/ continuing to hold appointment as a Director on the Board, based upon qualification, expertise, track record, integrity and other 'fit and proper' criteria. The Company shall obtain necessary information and declaration from the proposed/existing Directors for this purpose in the format given in the RBI Master Directions.
- b) The process of due diligence should be undertaken by the Company at the same time of appointment/renewal of appointment.
- c) The Board of the Company should constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to scrutinize the declarations.
- d) Based on the information provided in the signed declaration, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee should decide on the acceptance or otherwise of the Directors, where considered necessary.
- e) The Company should obtain annually as at 31st March, a simple declaration from the Directors that the information already provided has not undergone change within 7 days from the end of financial year and where there is any change, requisite details are furnished by them forthwith within 15 days of such change.
- f) The Board must ensure in the public interest that the nominated/ elected Directors execute the deeds of covenants in the format given in RBI Master Directions.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director/ Whole time Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person beyond the age of seventy years may hold this position as Managing Director/Whole time Director with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for appointment of person beyond the age of seventy years.

☐ INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTOR

The candidate shall be evaluated based on the criteria provided under the applicable laws including the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder. Each Independent Director has an affirmative obligation to inform the Board of any change in circumstances that may put his/her independence at issue.

The director's independence for the independent director will be determined by the Board on an annual basis upon the declarations made by such director, affirming that he/she fulfills the criteria of independence as per the provisions of the Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder.

A person proposed to be appointed as an independent director shall be qualified to be appointed as such in accordance with the applicable provisions of law and possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of Finance, Law, Management, Sales, Marketing, Administration, Research, Corporate Governance, Operations or other disciplines related to the business of the Company.



□ KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL ('KMP') AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT ('SMP')

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise, and experience of the person for appointment as KMP and recommend to the Board his/her appointment. The Committee shall also lay down the manner of appointment of SMPs and recommend the same to the board for its consideration.

A person should possess adequate qualifications, expertise, and experience for the position for which he/she is being considered for appointment. The Committee has the discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient/satisfactory for the position.

ii. TERM/TENURE

☐ Managing Director/Whole-time Director

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as Managing Director or Whole time Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time in terms of applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Further, no re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

□ Independent Director

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company, recommendation of Committee based on the report of performance evaluation of Independent Director and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. An Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that the number of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole Time Director of a listed Company.

Key Managerial Personnel/Senior Management

Upon recommendation of the Committee and based on the criteria laid down by said Committee for appointment the KMPs or SMPs be appointed for such period and on such terms as may be approved by the Board or as per criteria approved by the Board, respectively.



iii. **EVALUATION**

The Committee shall specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors which is to be carried out either by the Board, by the Committee or by an independent external agency including review of its implementation and compliance.

The evaluation process may be carried out as per the SEBI guidelines dated January 5, 2017, on Guidance Note on Board Evaluation or by such other procedure as the Committee may deem fit for evaluation process.

iv. REMOVAL

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations or as per the employment agreement (if any) the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or SMP subject to the provisions and in compliance of the applicable provisions.

v. RETIREMENT

The Director, KMP and SMP shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing HR policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP or SMP in the same position/remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company, subject to necessary compliances as per applicable provisions.

PART – C

POLICY RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION FOR THE DIRECTOR, KMPs, SMP AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

i. PRINCIPLES OF REMUNERATION

a)	The remuneration structure will be determined by the Committee who will ensure that:				
	The level of remuneration is supported by the need to retain earnings of the Company and the need to maintain adequate capital based on Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Procedure (ICAAP);				
	The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivat directors, KMPs and SMPs of the quality required to efficiently run the Company successfully;				
	Remuneration components are aligned effectively with prudent risk taking to ensure that remuneration is adjusted for all types of risk taking;				
	Remuneration outcomes are symmetric with risk outcomes;				



- ☐ Specifically for executive directors, KMPs and SMPs:
 - o Remuneration pay-outs are sensitive to the time horizon of the risk.
 - o The mix of cash, equity and other forms of remuneration will be consistent with risk alignment.
- b) NRC may revisit the principles on the basis of the industry and regulatory context, Company context and emerging best practices from time to time.

ii. REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR/WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. to the Managing Director/Whole-time Director, shall be recommended by the Committee to the Board for approval and further recommendation to the shareholders of the Company for their approval. The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.

The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing Directors/Whole-time Director shall be as per approval of shareholders of Company or Central Government in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules and schedules made thereunder, as applicable from time to time.

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Directors, KMP, SMP and any other employees for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.

COMPONENTS OF REMUNERATION

☐ Fixed pay:

- The Managing Director/Whole-time Director shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee.
- The fixed pay should typically consist of elements like Basic Salary, Allowances, Perquisites, contribution towards retirals. etc.
- In addition to the various cash components (salary, allowances etc.) it will also include certain reimbursable perquisites with monetary ceiling and certain non-monetary perquisites. The perquisites extended would be in the nature of but not limited to Company Car, Company leased accommodation, club memberships and such other benefits or allowances in lieu of such perquisites/benefits.
- The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer's contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.



□ Variable Pay:

- Variable pay shall comprise share-linked instruments and cash in the form of bonus or incentives.
 Value of Share linked instruments as may be determined on the basis of fair value on the date of grant using Black-Scholes model or any other model permissible by RBI. It shall be ensured that the share-linked instruments are in conformity with relevant statutory provisions.
- The Managing Director/Whole Time Director shall be entitled to get stock options of the Company which shall form part of their remuneration. An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.
- The performance bonus for Managing Director/Whole time Director of the Company shall be recommended by the Committee based on key performance indicators, i.e. Policy framework, Risk Management, disbursement, growth in Asset Under Management, Branch network expansion, diversification of product lines, Profits, reduction in costs of borrowing asset, quality and innovations. The performance shall be reviewed annually on above and other parameters as the Committee may recommend further.
- Variable pay shall be in the form of "pay at risk". Depending on performance and risk outcomes
 at individual, business units and company-wide level, the variable pay shall be truly variable and
 can even be reduced to zero.
- The proportion of Variable Pay in the Total Remuneration should be higher at higher levels of responsibility.
- KMPs and SMPs employed in Financial Control, Risk Management, Compliance, and Internal Audit roles shall have a higher proportion of fixed Pay in the total remuneration. Variable pay of control and assurance personnel should be independent of the performance of business areas they oversee. However, a reasonable proportion of total remuneration should be in the form of variable pay to enable the Company to exercise malus and/or claw back, if required.

□ Deferral of Variable Pay

- Of the total variable pay, a certain portion as may be decided by the Committee and Board, shall
 be deferred to the appropriate time horizon of the risk. The deferred remuneration may be in the
 form of cash and/ or share linked instruments. The deferral quantum and deferral period for share
 linked instruments will be governed as per this Policy which will be approved by the Board and
 Shareholders.
- In the case of cash variable pay, at least 30% of the cash variable pay shall be deferred for a
 minimum of 3 (three) years. In the case where cash component is under INR 25 Lakhs, deferral
 arrangement would not be necessary. Further, the Committee may specify a different threshold
 below which it will not be deferred.
- The committee may change the deferral quantum and period basis industry and regulatory context, company risk context and emerging best practices from time to time.



☐ Guaranteed Bonus

 No amount of bonus can be guaranteed to KMPs and SMPs except for hiring/ sign-on bonus to be paid to new hire. The said bonus shall not form part of Fixed or Variable pay.

☐ Malus/Clawback Arrangement:

• The deferred variable pay in a year shall be subject to:

Malus arrangement wherein in case of subdued or negative financial performance arising on account of gross negligence or misconduct of the KMP and/or SMP, the Company may withhold cash bonus or vesting of Employee Stock Options and may lapse unvested Employee Stock Options in accordance with the ESO Plan.

NRC may invoke Malus clause with respect to the KMPs and SMPs in the following illustrative scenarios:

- o Material Misstatement of the Company's financial statement/results,
- Significant corrosion of financial well-being of the Company,
- Exposing Company to substantial Risk,
- Any other situation where the Board and the Committee deem invoking Malus provision is necessary and justified.

In determining the causes for significant corrosion in financial well-being, the Committee may take into consideration and have due regard to the fact whether the corrosion was for factors within control or whether it was on account of conditions like global market headwinds, industry performance, changes in legal/regulatory regime, force majeure events like occurrence of natural disasters, pandemic, other socio-economic conditions etc.

Claw back arrangement wherein in case of gross negligence or misconduct or cause as defined in the Company's code of conduct, the KMP and/or SMP shall be liable to return previously paid or vested variable pay.

NRC may invoke Malus or Claw back clause with respect to the KMPs and SMPs in the following illustrative scenarios:

- Gross negligence, reckless, or deliberate actions. Errors of judgment shall not be considered as violation,
- Fraud that requires restatement of financials of the Company,
- o Harm to Companies reputation on account of KMPs and/or SMPs actions,
- Any other situation where the Board and the Committee deem invoking Claw back provision is necessary and justified.

While undertaking the review for the concerned person for the application of the Malus or the Clawback arrangement based on any trigger events, when determining accountability of the concerned person or group of persons, the Committee shall be guided by the principles of proportionality, culpability or proximity or nexus to the event or misconduct. Bonafide error/s of judgment where there is no misconduct, willful or intentional breach by act/



omission or gross negligence or lack of integrity, may not be treated as breaches under this Policy.

Prior to taking action the Management and the NRC shall ensure due regard to the Principles of Natural Justice.

Unless otherwise specified, the time horizon for the applicable of malus/clawback clause shall be five years or the deferral period or the Retention Period of the variable pay, whichever is higher, from the date of grant/ payment/vest.

On deciding to invoke Malus or Clawback, the Committee will have power to take any of the following action basis the nature and severity of trigger.

In case of Malus Clause:

- Cancel part or full vesting of the deferred cash or share linked component due for vesting in that particular year
- Cancel part or full vesting of entire unvested deferred cash or share linked component which are to be vested in future years

In case of Clawback Clause:

- o Recovery of part or full cash component of deferred variable pay paid over the applicable period
- Recovery of part or full of benefit (in form of shares or cash equivalent of shares) accrued to the employee on account of exercise of share linked instrument
- Forfeiture of part or full vested but unexercised share linked instrument Vested during the applicable period

The terms of appointment of KMPs and Senior Management of the Company shall be suitably amended to contain suitable clause on malus/clawback.

Minimum Remuneration

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Managing Director or Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the Central Government.

iii. REMUNERATION OF NON- EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

☐ Sitting Fees

The Directors may receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending meetings of Board and/ or Committee thereof provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed such amount as may be recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board from time to time, subject to the limits specified as per Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.



□ Commission

The Directors may receive Commission within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

iv. REMUNERATION OF OTHER EMPLOYEES

- In general, the principles laid down in Clause (i) above will be considered for governance and remuneration decisions related to other employees.
- In general, the proportion of Variable Pay in the total remuneration should be higher at higher level of responsibility.
- There should be an appropriate proportion of variable pay in the total remuneration so that performance and/or risk adjustment can be affected.

Note: The RBI guidelines on Compensation of KMP and SMP in NBFC (HFC) are applicable with effect from April 01, 2023.

Change of Control Record

Version No.	Change Request by	Memorandum of Change	Approval date
1.0	Compliance Department	-	21 st October 2023
2.0	Compliance Department	-	29 th March 2024

14